
SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 2,638                                  2,555                                 

Right-of-use assets 4 610                                     3,632                                 

Intangible assets 5(a) 75                                       669                                    

Intangible assets under development 5(b) 1,392                                  1,392                                 

Financial assets

i. Other financial assets 6 654                                     3,528                                 

Other non-current assets 7 107                                     144                                    

Total non-current assets 5,475                                  11,920                               

Current assets

Financial assets

i.  Trade receivables 8 3,850                                  7,568                                 

ii. Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,575                                  4,100                                 

iii. Other financial assets 6 3,248                                  -                                     

Current tax assets (net) 10 12,135                               11,065                               

Other current assets 11 3,217                                  2,482                                 

Total current assets 26,025                               25,215                               

Total assets 31,500                               37,134                               

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity share capital 12 100                                     100                                    

Other equity

Reserves and surplus 13 (237,989)                            (185,867)                           

Total equity (237,889)                            (185,767)                           

Liabilities

Non current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

i.  Lease Liabilities 442                                     962                                    

Employee benefit obligations 14 18,207                               17,252                               

Total non-current liabilities 18,649                               18,214                               

Current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

i.  Borrowings 15 175,600                             165,600                            

ii. Lease Liabilities 242                                     3,067                                 

iii. Trade payables 16

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 9,733                                  2,449                                 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises
18,063                               8,469                                 

iv. Other financial liabilities 17 35,856                               19,648                               

Employee benefit obligations 14 584                                     659                                    

Other current liabilities 18 10,662                               4,795                                 

Total current liabilities 250,740                              204,687                             

Total liabilities 269,389                             222,901                            

Total equity and liabilities 31,500                               37,134                               
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Vimal Manchanda                                               Nitil Singh

COO                                                                        CFO
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue

Revenue from contract with customers 19 115,996                             129,779                             

Other income 20 891                                     673                                     

Total income 116,887                             130,452                             

Expenses

Purchase of Stock in Trade 729                                     13,277                                

Project expenses 21 7,276                                  10,235                                

Finance costs 22 17,228                                14,130                                

Employee benefits expense 23 119,508                             141,177                             

Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 4,732                                  5,157                                  

Other expenses 25 20,002                                13,050                                

Total expenses 169,475                              197,027                              

Profit / (loss) before tax (52,588)                              (66,575)                              

Tax expenses

      -Current tax -                                      -                                      

      -Deferred tax expense/ (credit) -                                      -                                      

Total tax expense -                                      

Profit / (loss) for the period (52,588)                              (66,575)                              

Other comprehensive income -                                      

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 466                                     (445)                                    

Deferred tax on remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations -                                      

Other comprehensive income for the  period, net of tax 466                                     (445)                                   

Total comprehensive income for the  period (52,121)                              (67,020)                              

Earnings / (loss) per share: 27

Nominal value per share: INR 10

Basic (in INR) (Absolute figures) (5,259)                                (6,658)                                

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board

As per our report of even date

                       For R K Khanna and Co.               

                       Chartered Accountants              

                       FRN : 000033N                                 

Rakesh Khurana                                                    Vivek Avasthi Vipin Bali                                         

Director                                                                   Director Partner                                            

DIN No.00307513                                                  DIN No.00033876 M. No. 083436                                 

Vimal Manchanda                                               Nitil Singh

COO                                                                        CFO

AAQPM2309G                                                      ATGPB7133G

Place: Noida Place: New Delhi

Date: 8th May 2023 Date: 8th May 2023



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit / (loss) before tax (52,588)                          (66,575)                                   

Adjustments for

Interest cost 17,228                           14,130                                    

Depreciation 4,732                             5,157                                       

   Provision for employee benefit obligations 1,421                             5,343                                       

Provision for doubtful Debts -                                  61                                             

Interest income (882)                               (672)                                         

Lease liabilities written back to the extent no longer required (9)                                    -                                           
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes (30,097)                          (42,556)                                   

 Change in working Capital: 

 Decrease /(increase) in trade recoverable 3,718                             (1,059)                                     

 Decrease / (increase) in other financial assets (49)                                  (255)                                         

 Decrease /  (increase) in other current assets (851)                               (1,206)                                     

 Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets 38                                   213                                          

 Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 16,878                           3,352                                       

 Increase/(decrease) in other payables (782)                               376                                          

 Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 5,791                             396                                          

 Cash generated from operations (5,355)                            (40,739)                                   

   Less : Taxes paid (12,216)                          (11,065)                                   

   Add : Refund received 11,145                           6,127                                       

Add: Interest on income tax refund 557                                 370                                          
 Net cash generated from operations (5,868)                            (45,307)                                   

B.  Cash flow from Investing activities: 

 Payments for property, plant and equipment (1,578)                            (175)                                         

 Proceeds from security deposit 116                                 -                                           
 Net cash used in investing activities (1,461)                            (175)                                         

C.  Cash flow from financing activities: 

 Interest paid -                                  (8,196)                                     

 Payment of lease liabilities (3,196)                            (3,693)                                     

 Proceeds from short term borrowings from related parties 10,000                           56,000                                    
 Net cash used in financing activities 6,804                        44,111                               

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (525)                               (1,372)                                     

 Net Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,100                             5,473                                       

Cash and cash equivalents as at period closing 3,575                             4,100                                       

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following (refer note 8)

Cash on hand -                                  -                                           

Balances with banks 3,575                             4,100                                       
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 3,575                             4,100                                       

Notes:

i)

ii) Figures in brackets indicate Cash Outflow.

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date

For R K Khanna and Co.               

Chartered Accountants              

FRN : 000033N                                 

Rakesh Khurana                                                    Vivek Avasthi Vipin Bali                                         

Director                                                                   Director Partner                                            

DIN No.00307513                                                  DIN No.00033876 M. No. 083436                                 

Vimal Manchanda                                               Nitil Singh

COO                                                                        CFO

AAQPM2309G                                                      ATGPB7133G

Place: Noida Place: New Delhi

Date: 8th May 2023 Date: 8th May 2023

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard-7, “Statement of Cash 

Flows”.



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Statement of changes in equity as on March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Note Amount

As at April 01, 2021 12 100                  

Issue of equity share capital -                  

As at March 31, 2022 12 100                 

Issue of equity share capital -                  

As at March 31, 2023 100                 

B. Other equity

Securities 

Premium

Capital 

Reserve

General 

Reserve

Retained 

earnings

Balance as at April 01, 2021 -                  -                  -                  (118,849)        (118,849)        

Profit for the year -                  -                  -                  (66,575)           (66,575)           

Other comprehensive income -                  -                  -                  (445)                (445)                

Total comprehensive income for the year -                  -                  -                  (67,018)           (67,018)           

Balance as at March 31, 2022 -                  -                  -                  (185,867)        (185,867)        

Balance as at April 01, 2022 -                  -                  -                  (185,867)        (185,867)        

Profit for the year -                  -                  -                  (52,588)           (52,588)           

Other comprehensive income -                  -                  -                  466                  466                 

-                  -                  -                  (52,121)           (52,121)           

Balance as at March 31, 2023 -                  -                  -                  (237,989)        (237,989)        

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date

For R K Khanna and Co.               

Chartered Accountants              

FRN : 000033N                                 

Rakesh Khurana                                                    Vivek Avasthi Vipin Bali

Director                                                                    Director Partner

DIN No.00307513                                                  DIN No.00033876 M. No. 083436

Vimal Manchanda                                               Nitil Singh

COO                                                                        CFO

AAQPM2309G                                                      ATGPB7133G

Place: Noida Place: New Delhi

Date: 8th May 2023 Date: 8th May 2023

Total

Reserves and surplus



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1 Corporate Information

2.1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

Statement of compliance

(b) Segment reporting

(c) Current versus non-current classification

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

(d) Foreign currencies

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The Company was incorporated on October 1st, 2018 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Motherson Technology Services Limited* ( formerly known as Motherson

Infotech and Designs Limited), a company incorporated in India.The address of Company's registered office is 2nd floor, F-7, Block B-1, Mohan Cooperative Industrial

Estate, Mathura Road, Delhi 110044. The company is engaged in the business of computer programming, system design, system development, computer aided

designs, data completion, statistical analysis, software applications, software packages, computer peripherals, data publishing, processing systems and other industrial

automation systems and gadgets for healthcare sector and to distribute, export, import, deal in aforesaid computer software and hardware and other related

products in and outside India and offer support services, multimedia, internet, networking and allied fields and activities in information and technologies and all kinds

of internet based solutions.

During the year, company has increased its authorised share capital from INR 3,00,00,000 to INR 22,00,00,000. The capital clause of Memorandum of Association has

also been altered during the year.

* The name of MothersonSumi Infotech & Designs Limited was changed to Motherson Technology Services Limited w.e.f. May 19, 2022, after approval from the

Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana.

The Company’s functional currency is Indian Rupee (INR) and the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR).

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve 

months as its operating cycle.

(All amounts are in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Certified that there has been due compliance with all the laws, orders, regulations and other legal requirements of the central, state and other government and local 

authorities concerning the business affairs of the company.

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or

revalued amount:

• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) and

• Defined benefit pension plans – plan assets measured at fair value

The financial statements are presented in INR thousand, except when otherwise indicated.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting to the Chief Operating Officer “COO” of the Company. The COO is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The Company has monthly review and forecasting procedure in place and COO reviews the

operations of the Company as a whole.



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(ii) Transactions and balances

(e) Revenue recognition 

Sale of goods:

Sale of services:

Interest Income

Duty drawback and export incentives:

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance obligation is

satisfied.

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sales are recognised at single point of time when the control of goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of contract.

Revenues from the sale of services are recorded at single point of time when the performance obligation as per contract has been satisfied.

Interest is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, as income for the period in which it occurs. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the

estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to

the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all

the contractual terms of financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, charges, call and similar options) but does not consider expected

credit losses.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it creates a contract based asset on the amount of consideration

earned by the performance. Where the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised this gives rise to a contract

liability. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and

duty. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.

Income from duty drawback and export incentives is recognized on an accrual basis.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met

(a) The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternate use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance 

(b)  The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.

(c)  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.

Step 1. Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and

sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2. Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the

customer.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring

promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group

allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in

exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange

gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in other comprehensive income if they relate to

qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing cost are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All

other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income or other expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,

translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair

value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments (other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures

and associates) classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five-step model as set out in IND AS 115



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(f) Government grants

(g) Income tax

(h) Leases

As a Lessee

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes

in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It

establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with

all attached conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the

costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other income. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are

included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and

presented within other income. When government grants relating to loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest

rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and

measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is

subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts in the standalone financial statements. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction

other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit nor loss. Deferred income tax is determined using

tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income

tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances

relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to

settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In

this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is,

or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or

assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. the company

recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets

i) Right-of-use assets

The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets

includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease

incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as

follows: 

• Motor vehicles: 1 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated

using the estimated useful life of the asset.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an

index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably

certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to

terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the

period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate

implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and

reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a

change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the

assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

(k)

(l) Inventory

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which

the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is

calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent

budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing

rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the

entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses

no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss

is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The

reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the end of the financial year at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand short term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily

convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank

overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw material and traded goods comprise cost of purchase and is determined after rebate and discounts. Cost of work in progress and finished goods comprises

direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating

capacity.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment

testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating

unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash

inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,

the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no

such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for

publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are the amount due from customers for goods or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less ( 

or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. 

Trade receivables are initially recognise at fair value plus transaction cost.  Trade receivables are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method less any 

necessary write downs.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

The company’s lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of vehicles (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less

from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment

that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are

structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate the lessor for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are

included in the balance sheet based on their respective nature.



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(m) Financial instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

• Debt instruments at amortised cost

• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

• Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

Equity investments

Derecognition

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

Cost of inventories also includes all other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost includes the reclassification from

equity of any names or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchase of raw material but excludes borrowing costs. Costs are determined on weighted

average cost basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation

or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount

outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in

finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other

receivables.

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in

other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the

statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit

and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is

classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is

allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated

any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an

acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable

election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.

There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the

Company’s balance sheet) when:
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b)

Impairment of financial assets

a) 

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c) 

d) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

e) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the

criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated Ind AS as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI.

These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair

value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without

material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it

has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred

control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also

recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company

has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the

maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial

assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives

designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative

financial instruments.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime

ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the

credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has

increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in

credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of

the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to

receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair

value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category

also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS

109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Loans and borrowings

This category generally applies to borrowings and other payables.

Off setting of financial instruments

(n) Fair value measurement

•

•

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

•

•

•

•

•

•

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation

is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions 

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy 

Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of

assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset

or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and

best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the

use of relevant  observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,

based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels

in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets

measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the

presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
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(o) Property, Plant and equipment

Depreciation methods and useful lives

4 years

10 Years

4 years

3 years

(p)

(q)

Software

Plant & machinery 

Plant & machinery  (Secondhand)

Plant & machinery (Racks Stands & Trolleys)

Furniture & fixtures

Electrical installations

Office equipment

Computers

Vehicles

Technical  knowhow fees

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress are stated at

cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items and the cost of replacing

part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and

equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is

performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

Other borrowings costs are expensed  in the period in which they are incurred

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the assets:

Assets Useful life

Over the period of lease or useful life, 

Nil

3 years

4 years

*Useful life of these assets are lower than the life prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 and those has been determined based on an assessment

performed by the management of expected usage of these assets. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

5 years

30 years

9.67 Years

1 year

Leasehold Land

Freehold Land

Leasehold improvements in rented premises

Building Factory

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between 

the proceeds (net of transactions costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of borrowing using the effective interest 

method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that is probable that some or all of the facility 

will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is  no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility 

will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services or amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying 

amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non cash assets transferred or 

liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are reclassified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of a liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributle to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of 

the time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are the assets that necessarily take a substantial period of 

time to get ready for the intended use or sale.

6 years

5 years
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(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions

Contingent Liabilities

(s) Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Provident Fund 

Gratuity

Compensated Absences

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The

Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the

respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The gratuity plan in Company is funded through annual contributions to Life Insurance Corporation of

India (LIC) under its Company’s Gratuity Scheme whereas others are not funded. 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the

reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds. Re-

measurement gains and losses arising from experience

adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. They are

included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year end are treated as short term

employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected to

be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the end of the year end are treated as other long term

employee benefits. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. The present value of the

defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds. Re-measurement gains and

losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Past-

service costs are recognised immediately in income.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as

a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small. 

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate

asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any

reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the

liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either

not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the

employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified

as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.The company

recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure in the statement of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service.

Provisions for legal claims, product warranties and make good obligations are recognised when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a

result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.
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(t) Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

2.2 Critical estimates and judgements

2.3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Judgements

Estimates and adjustments

(i) Useful life of property, plant and equipment

(ii) Defined benefit plans

(iii) Taxes

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an asset/component of an asset.

The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is

charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves various assumptions that may differ

from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the

complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All

assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 14

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable

income. Given the nature of business differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions,

could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates.

The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by

the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions

prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number

of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

- The weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,

expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, there are no significant judgements established by the management.

The presentation of a financial statements require the use of accounting estimates, which by definition, will seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs 

to exercise judgements in applying the companys accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of all the areas that are involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially 

adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and 

judgements is included in relevant notes  together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in financial statements

Estimtes and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have 

financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on

parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to

market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to

participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.
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3.  Property plant and equipment

 Particulars 
 Leasehold 

improvements 

 Plant & 

Machinery 

 Furniture &  

fixtures  

 Office 

equipment 
 Computers  Total 

Year ended 31st March 2022

Gross carrying amount

As at April 01, 2021 1,904                  300                     21                       1,119                  2,048                  5,391                  

Addition -                      -                      -                      32                       143                     175                     

Disposal -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Closing gross carrying amount 1,904                  300                     21                       1,151                  2,191                  5,566                  

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2021 619                     8                         6                         394                     561                     1,588                  

Depreciation charge during the year 381                     99                       3                         225                     716                     1,424                  

Disposals -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Closing accumulated depreciation 999                     107                     9                         619                     1,277                  3,012                  

Net carrying amount 905                     193                     11                       532                     914                     2,555                  

Year ended 31st March 2023

Gross carrying amount

As at April 01, 2022 1,904                  300                     21                       1,151                  2,191                  5,566                  

Addition 154                     -                      -                      10                       1,414                  1,578                  

Disposal -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Closing gross carrying amount 2,058                  300                     21                       1,160                  3,606                  7,144                  

Accumulated depreciation

As at April 01, 2022 999                     107                     9                         619                     1,277                  3,012                  

Depreciation charge during the year 395                     99                       3                         230                     766                     1,494                  

Disposals -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Closing accumulated depreciation 1,395                  206                     13                       849                     2,043                  4,506                  

Net carrying amount 663                     94                       8                         311                     1,562                  2,638                  

(All amounts are in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)
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4.  Right-of-use assets

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Vehicles Buildings Total

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2021 4,258          5,990                10,248           

Addition 493             -                    493                 

Disposal -                 

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 4,751          5,990                10,741           

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 01, 2021 1,792          2,178                3,970             

Depreciation charged during the year 961             2,178                3,139             

Disposal -                 

Closing accumulated ammortisation as at March 31, 2022 2,753          4,356                7,109             

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022           1,998                  1,634 3,632             

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars Vehicles Buildings Total

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount as at April 01, 2022 4,751          5,990                10,741           

Addition -              -                    -                 

Addition on account of acquisition -              -                    -                 

Disposal (2,752)        (5,990)               (8,742)            

Closing gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 1,999          -                    1,999             

Accumulated depreciation

Opening accumulated amortisation as at April 01, 2022 2,753          4,356                7,109             

Depreciation charged during the year 1,010          1,634                2,644             

Disposal* (2,374)        (5,990)               (8,364)            

Closing accumulated ammortisation as at March 31, 2023 1,389          -                    1,389             

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022               610                         -   610                 

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)
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(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

5(a). Intangible assets

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 1,800                              1,800                         

Additions -                                  -                             

Closing gross carrying amount 1,800                             1,800                        

Accumulated amortisation 

Opening accumulated amortisation 1,131                              537                            

Amortisation charge during the year 594                                 594                            

Closing accumulated amortisation 1,725                             1,131                        

Net carrying amount 75                                   669                            

5(b). Intangible assets under development

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 1,392                              1,392                         

Additions -                                  -                             

Closing gross carrying amount 1,392                             1,392                        

Accumulated amortisation 

Opening accumulated amortisation -                                  -                             

Amortisation charge during the year -                                  -                             

Closing accumulated amortisation -                                  -                             

Net carrying amount 1,392                             1,392                        

Software 
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Intangible assets under development ageing schedule

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Projects in progress -                          -                          1,392                      1,392                     

Projects temporarily suspended -                          -                          -                          -                            -                         

Total -                          -                          1,391.8               -                            1,392                     

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Projects in progress -                          1,392                      -                          -                            1,392                     

Projects temporarily suspended -                          -                          -                          -                            -                         

Total -                          1,392                      -                       -                            1,392                     

Note: This is related to the development of teleconsultation applications for commercial purposes. The maturity of the application requires further development 

and investment before launching it for commercial purposes.

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Total

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Total

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022
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6.  Other financial assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Security deposits 3,248                    654                        -                        3,528                    
Total 3,248                    654                       -                        3,528                    

7. Other non-current assets 

 (Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Prepaid expenses 107                        144                        

Total 107                       144                       

March 31, 2022March 31, 2023
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8.  Trade receivables

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

- Related parties 5                        297                        

- Others 3,845                7,272                     

- Credit impaired 61                      61                          

3,912                7,630                     

Less: Allowances for credit impaired 61                      61                          

Total trade receivables 3,850                7,568                     

Trade receivables ageing schedule:

Undisputed

Related 

parties
Others Total

Related 

parties
Others Total

Related 

parties
Others Related parties Others

Current but not due 5             -          5             -          2,697     2,697       -               -         -                        -                             
Outstanding for following periods 

from due date of payment
Less than 6 months -          3,845     3,845     297         4,574     4,871       -               -         -                        -                             
6 months - 1 year -          -          -         -          -          -           -               -         -                        -                             
1 - 2 years -          -          -         -          -          -           -               -         -                        -                             
2 - 3 years -          -          -         -          -          -           -               -         -                        61                               
More than 3 years -          -          -         -          -          -           -               61          -                        -                             
Less: Allowance for credit loss -          -          -         -          -          -           -               61          -                        61                               

Total 5             3,845     3,850     297         7,272     7,568       -               -         -                        -                             

March 31, 2022

Trade receivables - considered good Trade receivables - credit impaired

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023
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9.  Cash and cash equivalents 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Balances with banks:

 - in current account 3,575                                   4,100                      

Total 3,575                                   4,100                      

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

 March 31,2022  Cash Flow Non Cash Items*  March 31,2023 

Current borrowings 165,600 10,000 -                                       175,600                 

Current and non current lease liabilities 4,029                       (3,196) (149)                                     684                         

Total liabilities from financing activities 4,029                   (3,196)                      (149)                                     684                         

 March 31,2021  Cash Flow Non Cash Items*  March 31,2022 

Current borrowings                109,600                       56,000 -                                        165,600                 

Current and non current lease liabilities                     6,678                       (3,693) 1,044                                   4,029                      

Total liabilities from financing activities 6,678                   (3,693)                      1,044                                   4,029                      

*Non cash items include new leases taken or termination of lease contracts in case of lease liabilities.

10. Current tax assets (net)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Opening balance 11,065                                 6,127                      

Add: Taxes paid 12,216                                 11,065                    

Less: Refund received (11,145)                                (6,127)                     

12,135                                 11,065                    

11. Other current assets 

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Prepaid expenses 596                                       717                         

Capital advance 3                                           -                          

Balances with government authorities* 2,618                                   1,641                      

Advances to employees -                                        125                         

Total 3,217                                   2,482                      

*Represents GST input credit available for utilisation once the concerned suppliers have been paid.
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12. Share Capital

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Authorised:

2,20,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each (FY2021-22: 30,00,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each) 220,000                      30,000                        

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:

10,000 Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up 100                              100                              

Total 100                              100                              

A. Movement in equity share capital

Numbers Numbers 

As at April 2022 10,000                        10,000                        

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors -                              -                              

Add: Issued during the period -                              -                              

As at March 2023 10,000                        10,000                        

B. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares:

C. Details of shares held by the promoters

As at March 31, 2023

S.No. Promoter Name

No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year

Change during the 

year

 No. of the shares at 

the year end  % of total shares 

 % change during the 

year 

Equity shares of 

Rs. 10 each fully 

paid up

Motherson Technology 

Solutions Limited (formerly 

known as MothersonSumi 

Infotech and Design Limited)

10,000                                       -                                  10,000                            100% 0%

Total 10,000                                       -                                  10,000                            

* Includes 6 shares held by nominee shareholders

As at March 31, 2022

S.No. Promoter Name

No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year

Change during the 

year

 No. of the shares at 

the year end  % of total shares 

 % change during the 

year 

Equity shares of 

Rs. 10 each fully 

paid up

Motherson Technology 

Solutions Limited (formerly 

known as MothersonSumi 

Infotech and Design Limited)

10,000                                       -                                  10,000                            100% 0%

Total 10,000                                       -                                  10,000                            

* Includes 6 shares held by nominee shareholders

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
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13. Reserves and surplus

 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Retained earnings                     (237,989)                (185,867)

Total reserves and surplus                    (237,989)                (185,867)

Retained earnings

 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Opening Balance (185,867)                   (118,849)              

Profit / (loss) for the year (52,588)                      (66,575)                 

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations, net of tax 466                            (445)                      

Closing balance (237,989)                   (185,867)              
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14. Employee benefit obligations

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Gratuity 232                      12,271                         216                           11,533                              
Compensated absences 254                      5,936                           257                           5,719                                
Compensated absences (Casual Leave) 98                        -                               186                           -                                   
Total 584                      18,207                        659                           17,252                             

The long term defined employee benefits and contribution schemes of the Company are as under:

A. Defined Benefit Schemes

Gratuity 

(i) Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Obligations at year beginning 11,749                     7,813                               

Service Cost - Current 1,619                       2,024                               
Interest expense 844                           533                                  
Amount recognised in profit or loss 2,462                       2,557                               

Remeasurements
Experience (gains)/losses (250)                         901                                  
Changes in Financial Assumption (216)                         (456)                                 
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income (466)                         445                                  

Settlements (1,967)                      -                                   
Addition due to transfer of employee 725                           934                                  
Obligations at year end 12,503                     11,749                             

(ii) Assets and Liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value of the defined benefit obligations 12,503                     11,749                             
Amount recognized as Liability

(iii) Defined benefit obligations cost for the period:
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Service Cost - Current 1,619                       2,024                               
Interest Cost 844                           533                                  
Expected return on plan assets -                           -                                   
Actuarial (gain) / loss (466)                         445                                  
Net defined benefit obligations cost 1,996                       3,002                               
(iv) Actuarial assumptions:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount Rate per annum 7.36% 7.18%
Future salary increases 8.00% 8.00%

The reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as below:

Every employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to fifteen days’ salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
The same is payable at the time of separation from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after five years of continuous service. The plan
is unfunded.

However for, purposes of disclosure, relevant information as per the actuarial certificate is given below

March 31, 2022March 31, 2023
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(v) Sensitivity Analysis

 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 
Discount Rate per annum 0.50% Decrease by 628                     654                      Increase by                           (585)                                  (608)
Future salary increases 0.50% Increase by 621                     646                      Decrease by                           (584)                                  (606)

(vi) Risk exposure

 Expected benefit payments 

Less than a year
Between
1-2 years

Between
2-5 years

Over 5 years Total

March 31, 2023
Defined benefit obligation 
(gratuity)

232 265                      961                              11,045                                                  12,503 

March 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation 
(gratuity)

                      216                        224                                805                       10,503                              11,749 

B. Defined Contribution Schemes

 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
4,825                           5,854                       

                                  -                                 20 

The sensitivity of defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is :
Increase in Assumptions Decrease in AssumptionsImpactChange in 

Assumption
Impact

Note: Estimate of future increases considered in actuarial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and
demand in the employment market.

Contribution to other funds (Employee welfare etc.)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding all the other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change in
some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in balance sheet.

Provident fund paid to the authorities

(a) Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds, if bond yield fall, the defined benefit obligation will 
tend to increase.
(b) Salary inflation risk: Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

The Company deposits an amount determined at a fixed percentage of basic pay every month to the State administered Provident Fund.

 vii) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions

 Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 14.25 years

The gratuity scheme is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death, disability, voluntary 
withdrawal. The benefits are defined  on the basis of final salary and the period of service  and paid as lump sum at exit. The plan design means  the risk commonly  
affecting the liabilities and the financial results are expected to be:

Amount recognised in the  Statement of Profit & Loss
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15. Borrowings

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Unsecured

Loan from holding company (Motherson Technology Services Limited)

          Indian rupee loan 175,600 -                                   165,600                           -                                   

175,600                           -                                   165,600                           -                                   

Lender Name Interest Amount *Earlier Due Date Due Date

Motherson Technology Services Limited* 10% p.a. 170,100 31st March 2023 31st March 2024

Motherson Technology Services Limited** 10% p.a. 5500 - 20th March 2024

* Loan (INR 1,70,100 thousand) along with interest accrued (INR 27,497 thousand) renewed during the year.

** New loan taken during the year from the holding company.

The lender reserves the right to call back the loan as and when they deem fit. Interest is payable on the maturity.

March 31, 2022March 31, 2023
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16.  Trade payables

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

-Related parties 9,727                      1,607                      

-Others 6                              842                          

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

-Related parties 15,080                    8,057                      

-Others 2,983                       412                          

Total 27,796                    10,918                    

Trade payable ageing schedule:

Undisputed

Related 

parties
Others

Related 

parties
Others

Related 

parties
Others Related parties Others

Current but not due 210             -             514             842             366             723             3,652                         176                             
Outstanding for following periods from 

due date of payment

Less than 6 months 3,018         6                 1,093         -             8,748         2,260         4,089                         193                             

6 months - 1 year 4,937         -             -             -             3,998         -             316                             6                                 

1 - 2 years 1,561         -             -             -             1,967         -             -                             39                               

2 - 3 years -             -             -             -             -             -             -                             -                             

More than 3 years -             -             -             -             -             -             -                             -                             

Total 9,727         6                 1,607         842             15,080       2,983         8,057                         412                             

17.  Other financial liabilities

 March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022 

Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 27,513                    12,221                    

Advance recovery from employees 2,890                      2,424                      

Employee benefits payable 5,454                      5,003                      

Total 35,856                    19,648                    

18. Other current liabilities

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Statutory dues 3,944                      4,471                      

Advances received from customers 6,718                      39                            

Other payables -                           286                          

Total 10,662                    4,795                      

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Trade payables dues to micro and small 

enterprises

Trade payables dues of creditors other than micro and small 

enterprises

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
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19.  Revenue from contract with customers For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Sales of products 

Traded goods 902                              17,215                                

902                              17,215                                

Sale of Services:

Income from projects

Within India 113,021                      112,563                              

Outside India 2,073                          -                                      

115,094                      112,563                              

Total 115,996                      129,779                              

 20. Other income For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest on income tax refund 557                              370                                      

Financial assets at amortised cost 325                              304                                      

Lease liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 9                                  -                                      

Total 891                              673                                     

 21.  Project Expenses For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Implementation cost

Travelling 4,248                          4,906                                  

Consultancy Charges 159                              4,189                                  

Project Softwares/Licenses -                               1,140                                  

Project Hardware 2,869                          -                                      

 Total 7,276                          10,235                                

22. Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest on loan from holding company 16,991                        13,579                                

Finance cost of lease liability 238                              551                                      
Total 17,228                        14,130                                

23. Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salary, wages & bonus 109,120                      129,545                              

Contribution to Provident Fund 4,825                          5,854                                  

Contribution to ESI -                               20                                        

Gratuity 2,462                          2,557                                  

Leave encashment 1,477                          2,029                                  

Staff welfare expenses 1,623                          1,172                                  

Total 119,508                      141,177                              
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24. Depreciation and amortisation expense For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1,494                          1,424                                  

Amortisation of intangible assets 594                              594                                      

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 2,644                          3,139                                  

Total 4,732                          5,157                                  

25. Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Electricity Expenses 241                              189                                      

Repairs and maintenance:

Vehicles 7                                  -                                      

Building 35                                2                                          

Others 22                                -                                      

Lease rent considered low value

- Building 764                              113                                      

- Machinery 365                              422                                      

Amortisation of prepaid expense on lease liability:

- Vehicles 234                              214                                      

- Building 70                                94                                        

Rates & taxes 2,273                          920                                      

Exchange Fluctuation Realised (Gain)/Loss 41                                -                                      

Business promotion

     Sponsorship -                               -                                      

     Others 1,058                          428                                      

Printing and stationery 25                                67                                        

Donation 14                                12                                        

Travelling and conveyance 7,058                          1,700                                  

Provision for doubtful debts -                               61                                        

Postage and Courier 97                                106                                      

Audit Fee (Refer note (a) below) 121                              118                                      

Legal & professional expenses 2,515                          5,846                                  

Insurance premium 160                              111                                      

Recruitment Expenses 219                              444                                      

Office expenses 1,071                          642                                      

Computer and IT expenses 3,501                          1,548                                  

Bank Charges 7                                  1                                          

Subscription 55                                -                                      

Miscellaneous expenses 48                                11                                        

Total 20,002                        13,050                                

(a): Audit Fee For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

As Auditor:

Audit fees 121                              118                                      

Total 121                              118                                     
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26. Income tax expenses

Tax disclosures for the period ended March 31, 2023 under Ind AS 12

Income tax expense recognized in the profit and loss:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

In respect of current period* -                               -                                      

-                              -                                      

Reconciliation of tax expense with the effective tax: For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit/(loss) before tax (52,588)                       (66,575)                               

Income tax rate of 26%* (13,673)                       (17,310)                               

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income 445                              99                                        

Unrecognised deferred tax assets 13,228                        17,211                                

Income tax expense 13,673                        17,310                                

27. Earnings/(Loss) per share

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a) Basic

Net profit / (loss) after tax available for equity Shareholders                        (52,588)                                (66,575)

Average number of equity shares used to compute basic earnings per share                          10,000                                  10,000 

Basic earnings / (loss) per share (INR) (Absolute figures)                          (5,259)                                  (6,658)

The Company does not have any potential equity shares and thus, there is no diluted EPS.

*Income tax expense recognized in profit and loss is Nil as the company does not have taxable income.
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28. Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost

Financial assets

Trade receivables* -               -                       3,850                  -                          -                            7,568                

Cash and cash equivalents* -               -                       3,575                  -                          -                            4,100                

Other financial assets* -               -                       3,248                  -                          -                            -                     

Total financial assets -               -                       10,673               -                          -                            11,668              

Financial liabilities

Borrowings* -               -                       175,600             -                          -                            165,600            

Trade payables* -               -                       27,796                -                          -                            10,918              

Other financial liabilities* -               -                       35,856                -                          -                            19,648              

Total financial liabilities -               -                       239,252             -                          -                            196,166            

i. Fair value of non current financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

Carrying 

amount

Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

Financial assets

Other financial assets* 654                     654                         3,528                        3,528                

654                     654                         3,528                        3,528                

Financial liabilities

Borrowings * -                      -                          -                            -                     

-                      -                          -                            -                    

*The fair value of non-current financial instruments carried at amortized cost is substantially same as carrying amount.

ii. Valuation technique used to determine fair value

29. Financial risk management

Market risk:

A Foreign currency risk:

There are no derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposures.

B Interest rate risk:

March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

Fixed rate borrowings 175,600                  165,600                   

Total borrowings 175,600                 165,600                   

The fair value of remaining financial instrument is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2023

*The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, borrowings, trade receivables and other current financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as fair value due to 

their short term maturities.

The Company, is an active provider of software consultancy and application solutions to the Pharma industry and exposes its business and products  to various market risks and liquidity risks. The regulations, 

instructions, implementation rules and in particular, the regular communication throughout the tightly controlled management processes  consisting of planning, controlling and monitoring collectively form the risk 

management system used to define, record and minimise operating, financial and strategic risks. The  notes below explain the sources of risks to which the Company is exposed to and how it manages the risks:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the future value of cash flows of an exposure which will fluctuate because of change in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange 

rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (whenever revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cashflows of a financial intruments will fluctuate because of changes in market price/rate. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Interest rate risk, foreign currency 

risk and other price risk. The financial instruments affected by market risk including loan and borrowings, deposits and payables/recievables in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. During the year, company has borrowings at fixed rate of interest.
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C Credit risk:

D Liquidity risk:

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 175,600                  -                            -                                 175,600 

Trade payables 27,796                    -                            -                                    27,796 

Lease Liability 242                         442                           -                     

Other financial liabilities 35,229                    627                           -                                    35,856 

Total non-derivative liabilities 238,867                 1,069                        -                    239,252            

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 165,600                  -                            -                                 165,600 

Trade payables 10,918                    -                            -                                    10,918 

Lease Liability 3,067                      962                           -                                      4,029 

Other financial liabilities 17,224                    2,424                        -                                    19,648 

Total non-derivative liabilities 196,810                 3,385                        -                    200,195            

Year ended  March 31, 2022 Total

More than 5 

years

Total1 to 5 yearsYear ended  March 31, 2022 Upto 1 year

Upto 1 year 1 to 5 years

The liquidity risk encompasses any risk that the Company cannot fully meet its financial obligations. To manage the liquidity risk, cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating divisions of the 

Company and aggregated by Company finance. The Company's finance monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs 

while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities / overdraft facilities at all times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or covenants  on any of its 

borrowing facilities.

More than 5 

years

The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities:

The credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations towards the Company and arises principally from 

the Company's receivables from customers and deposits with banking institutions. The maximum amount of the credit exposure is equal to the carrying amounts of these receivables.

The Company has developed guidelines for the management of credit risk from trade receivables. The Company’s primary customers are group companies. Even-though clients are subjected to credit 

assessments as a precautionary measure, and the adherence of all clients to payment due dates is monitored on an on-going basis, thereby practically eliminating the risk of default. The Company has 

deposited liquid funds with major Indian banks. 



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

30. Capital management

(a) Risk management

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net Debt 172,025                       161,500              

EBITDA (30,627)                        (47,288)               

Net Debt to EBITDA (5.62)                            (3.42)                    

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide 

returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Consistent with 

others in the industry, the Company monitors NET Debt to EBITDA ratio i.e. Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by 

EBITDA (Profit before tax plus depreciation and amortization expense plus finance costs).

The Company's strategy is to ensure that the Net Debt to EBITDA is managed at an optimal level considering the above factors. The Net Debt to 



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

31. Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities as at March 31, 2023.

32. Capital and Other Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Property, plant and equipment

                                   100 

Total                                    100                                       -   

Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed (net of advance)                                       -   



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

33.  Related Party Disclosures

(i) Holding Company

Samvardhana Motherson International Limited (formerly Motherson Sumi Systems Limited) (Ultimate Holding Company) 

Motherson Technology Services Limited (formerly MothersonSumi Infotech & Designs Limited) (Holding Company)

(ii) Fellow subsidiaries (with whom transaction have taken place)

Motherson Consultancies Service Limited

Samvardhana Motherson Maadhyam International Limited

Motherson Invenzen XLab Private Limited

Motherson Air Travel Agencies Limited

(iii) Joint Venture

Marelli Motherson Automotive Lighting India Pvt Ltd.

(iv) Key Managerial Persons

Mr. Vivek Avasthi

Mr. Parthasarathy Srinivasan

Mr. Rakesh Khurana 

(v) Entity controlled or jointly controlled by directors or key managerial persons of company or holding company

Systematic Conscom Limited

Motherson Lease Solution Limited

Motherson Sumi Wiring India Limited

I. List Of Related Parties As Per Ind AS 24



SAMVARDHANA MOTHERSON HEALTH SOLUTION LIMITED

CIN: U72900DL2018PLC339891

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

II. Details of transactions, in the ordinary course of business at commercial terms and balances with related parties as mentioned 32 (I):

(a) Key management personnel compensation

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Short-term employee benefits -                                    -                                        

Post-employment benefits -                                    -                                        

Long-term employee benefits -                                    -                                        

Total compensation -                                    -                                        

(b) Transactions with related parties

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1 Sale of goods -                                    -                                   -                                    367                                  -                                    272                                       -                                    13,392                                 -                                    86                                         -                                    14,117                              

2 Services rendered 50,583                             71,878                            -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        50,583                             71,878                              

3 Purchase of fixed assets 1,414                                143                                  -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        154                                   201                                       -                                    -                                        1,568                                345                                    

4 Purchase of goods 729                                   -                                   -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        729                                   -                                     

5 Professional Expenses 1,587                                4,907                               210                                   400                                  -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        1,797                                5,307                                

6 Project expenses -                                    340                                  1,489                                2,087                               -                                    -                                        -                                    1,827                                    -                                    -                                        1,489                                4,255                                

7 IT Expenses 3,501                                1,356                               -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        3,501                                1,356                                

8 Staff Welfare Expenses -                                    -                                   -                                    12                                     -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    12                                      

9 Travelling Expenses -                                    -                                   7,058                                814                                  -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        7,058                                814                                    

10 Office rent 749                                   431                                  -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    2,133                                    -                                    -                                        749                                   2,564                                

11 Freight charges -                                    -                                   -                                    306                                  -                                    -                                        -                                    306                                       -                                    -                                        -                                    612                                    

12 Commission expenses -                                    -                                   3                                        2                                       -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        3                                        2                                         

13 Electricity expenses -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        241                                   189                                       -                                    -                                        241                                   189                                    

14 Insurance expenses 11                                      12                                     -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    93                                         -                                    -                                        11                                      105                                    

15 Vehicle Hire charges -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        1,822                                1,740                                    -                                    -                                        1,822                                1,740                                

16 Interest accrued on loan 16,991                             13,579                            -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        16,991                             13,579                              

17 Loan taken during the year 10,000                             56,000                            -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        10,000                             56,000                              

18 Reimbursement received -                                    2,007                               5                                        20                                     -                                    332                                       0 649                                       -                                    -                                        5                                        3,007                                

19 Reimbursement paid -                                    509                                  -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    533                                       -                                    -                                        -                                    1,042                                

20 Security deposit given -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        196                                   351                                       -                                    -                                        196                                   351                                    

21 Security deposit received -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        116                                   -                                        -                                    -                                        116                                   -                                     

(c) Outstanding balances arising from sales / purchases of goods and services

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1 Equity share capital 100                                   100                                  -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        100                                   100                                    

2 Trade receivables -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                   -                                    297                                       5                                        -                                        -                                    -                                        5                                        297                                    

3 Trade payables 16,250                             8,057                               8,160                                -                                   -                                    -                                        397                                   -                                        -                                    -                                        24,807                             8,057                                

4 Security deposits (given) 1,116                                1,038                               -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        2,771                                2,474                                    -                                    -                                        3,887                                3,513                                

5 Loan payable 175,600                           165,600                          -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        175,600                           165,600                            

6 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 27,513                             12,221                            -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        27,513                             12,221                              

7 Capital Advance -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        3                                        -                                        -                                    -                                        3                                        -                                     

8 Advances from customers 6,718                                39                                     -                                    -                                   -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        -                                    -                                        6,718                                39                                      

(d) Loans from related parties

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

A Loans:

Beginning of the year 165,600                           109,600                          

Loan Received 10,000                             56,000                            

Loans Transfers -                                    -                                   

Loans Repaid -                                    -                                   

End of the year 175,600                           165,600                          

B Interest charged 16,991                             13,579                            

C Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 27,513                             12,221                            

 Key Management personnel Total

S. No. Particulars
Holding company Subsidiary & Fellow Subsidiary Companies  Joint ventures  Other related parties  Key Management personnel Total

S. No. Particulars
Holding company Fellow Subsidiaries  Joint ventures  Other related parties 

Holding company
S. No. Particulars
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

34. Due to micro and small enterprises    

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 

remaining unpaid as at year end
                                         9,733                           2,449 

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid 

as at year end
                                                -                                    -   

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond 

the appointed day during the year
                                                -                                    -   

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered 

under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
                                                -                                    -   

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the 

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
                                                -                                    -   

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for 

payments already made
                                                -                                    -   

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years                                                 -                                    -   

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

(‘MSMED Act’). The principal amount due (provided in the books of accounts) and interest thereon (not provided in the books of 

accounts) is as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

35. Disclosure under Ind AS 115

Disclosures given in relation to contracts with customers are as under:

a. There is no provision for doubtful debts

b. Disaggregation of revenue:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue by major product lines

Sale of products 902                      17,215                 

Income from projects -                       -                       

Other income 891                      673                      

Total revenue from contract with customers 1,794                   17,888                

Timing of revenue recognition

   At a point in time 1,794                   17,888                 

   Over time

Total revenue from contract with customers 1,794                   17,888                 

c. Revenue from contracts with customers

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

6,718                   39                         

d. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

3,850                   7,568                   

6,718                   39                         

36. Disclosure under Ind AS 116 Leases

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current lease liabilities                                   242                                   3,067 

Non-current lease liabilities                                   442                                      962 

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified on March 30, 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or

after April 01, 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all

leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees –

leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a

lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e.,

the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective annual reporting period beginning April 01, 2019, by following modified retrospective approach and its impact on financial

statement presented below:

The company has applied Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts from customers with effect from April 01, 2018, The company has opted for the modified retrospective 

application permitted by Ind AS 115 upon adoption of the new standard. Accordingly Ind AS 115 has been applied for year ended March 31, 2018 only. However there is 

no impact of adoption of Ind AS 115 on the financials for the period ended March 31st 2018.

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time in the following major product lines and geographical regions: 

Revenue by category

Particulars 

Revenue recognised from amounts included in advance from 

Particulars 

Receivables 

Contract liabilities (advance received from customer)

The company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition

exemptions for these leases

The company has lease contracts for various items of vehicles. Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the company classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date 

as either a finance lease or an operating lease. Refer to Note 2(h) Leases for the accounting policy prior to April 01, 2019.

Upon adoption of Ind AS 116, the company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except for short-term leases and leases of low-value 

assets. Refer to Note 2(h) Leases for the accounting policy beginning April 01, 2019. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, which 

have been applied by the company.



                                  684                                   4,029 

Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss during the year on account of Ind AS 116

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
                                  238                                      551 

Depreciation of Right of Use assets                               2,644                                   3,139 

                              2,881                                   3,690 

37. Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (net)

The company has carried out a computation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities); details are given below:

Opening

Balance
Charged to P&L Charged to OCI For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for doubtful debts 16                         -                                  -                                  16                                       

Employee benefit provision 4,608                   29                                   (121)                               4,517                                 

Property, plant & equipment 254                      151                                 -                                  405                                    

Lease liabilities 1,048                   (870)                               -                                  178                                    

Security Deposits 9                           (90)                                  -                                  (81)                                     

Others 3                           (3)                                    -                                  (0)                                        

Carried forward business losses 43,280                 12,748                           -                                  56,028                               

Unabsorbed depreciation 1,089                   392                                 -                                  1,481                                 

Total (A) 50,306                12,358                           (121)                               62,544                              

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Right of use asset 944                      (786)                               -                                  159                                    

Prepaid expenses 117                      (84)                                  -                                  32                                       

Total (B) 1,061                   (870)                               -                                  191                                    

Net deferred tax assets* (Total (A)-(B)) 49,246                13,228                           (121)                               62,353                              

Less: Unrecognised deferred tax (49,246)               (13,228)                          121                                 (62,353)                             

Deferred tax asset recognised -                       -                                  -                                  -                                     

Opening

Balance
Charged to P&L Charged to OCI For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision for doubtful debts -                       16                                   -                                  16                                       

Employee benefit provision 3,532                   1,192                             (116)                               4,608                                 

Property, plant & Equipment 97                         157                                 -                                  254                                    

Lease liabilities 2,004                   (957)                               -                                  1,048                                 

Security Deposits 88                         (79)                                  -                                  9                                         

Others 6                           (3)                                    -                                  3                                         

Carried forward business losses 27,659                 15,621                           -                                  43,280                               

Unabsorbed depreciation 721                      368                                 -                                  1,089                                 

Total (A) 34,107                16,315                           (116)                               50,306                              

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Right of use asset 1,760                   (816)                               -                                  944                                    

Prepaid expenses 197                      (80)                                  -                                  117                                    

Total (B) 1,957                   (896)                               -                                  1,061                                 

Net deferred tax assets* (Total (A)-(B)) 32,150                17,211                           (116)                               49,246                              

Less: Unrecognised deferred tax (32,150)               (17,211)                          116                                 (49,246)                             

Deferred tax asset recognised -                       -                                  -                                  -                                     

 *The company has not recognized above deferred tax assets in the absence of virtual certainty of realisation of sufficient future taxable profits to realise the same. 

 *The company has not recognized above deferred tax assets in the absence of virtual certainty of realisation of sufficient future taxable profits to realise the same. 

Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in finance cost) 
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38. Ratio Analysis:

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 % Change Reason for Variance < 25%
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current liabilities 0.10 :1 0.12 :1 16% -

(b) Debt Equity Ratio Debt = CL+NCL Equity (0.74)                     (0.91)                       19% -

(c) Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio*

Earning for debt Service Interest & lease payments + 

principal repayments

-                        -                          0% -

(d) Return on Equity Ratio** PAT Average shareholders 

equity fund

-                        -                          0% -

(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio COGS Average inventory -                        -                          0% -

(f) Trade Receivable 

Turnover Ratio

Gross Credit Sales - Sales 

Return

Average trade receivables 20.32 x 18.36 x -11% -

(g) Trade Payable Turnover 

Ratio

Net Credit Purchase Average trade payables 1.45 x 3.96 x 63% Variance due to:

a) decrease in credit purchases during the 

year

b) accumulation of creditors due to delay 

in payment 
(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Working capital (0.57 x) (0.87 x) 34% Variance due to:

a) accumulation of interest payable for 2 

years

b) accumulation of creditors due to delay 

in payment

c) advance received from customer
(i) Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Net sales (45.34%) (51.30%) 12% -

(j) Return on Capital 

Employed ***

EBIT Capital employed -                        -                          0% -

(k) Return on Investment Interest Income Investment -                        -                          0% -

(All amounts in INR thousand, unless otherwise stated)

*Debt service coverage ratio (DSCR) is not applicable as Earning before interest & tax (EBIT) is negative, hence DSCR has no relevance.

**Return on equity ratio is not applicable as Profit after tax and Average equity shareholders fund both are negative.

***Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) is not applicable as Earning before interest & tax (EBIT) and capital employed both are negative, hence ROCE has no relevance.



39. Cash Loss

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit/(Loss) after Tax (52,588)                                (66,575)                                  

Add: Depreciation on PPE 1,494                                    1,424                                      

Add: Amortisation of intangible assets 594                                       594                                         

Add: Depreciation on lease assets 2,644                                    3,139                                      

Cash Loss (47,856)                                (61,418)                                  

40. Other Statutory Information

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

For and on behalf of the Board As per our report of even date

For R K Khanna and Co.               

Chartered Accountants              

FRN : 000033N                                 

Rakesh Khurana                                                    Vivek Avasthi Vipin Bali                                         

Director                                                                    Director Partner                                            

DIN No.00307513                                                  DIN No.00033876 M. No. 083436                                 

Vimal Manchanda                                               Nitil Singh

COO                                                                        CFO

AAQPM2309G                                                      ATGPB7133G

Place: Noida Place: New Delhi

Date: 8th May 2023 Date: 8th May 2023

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year 

in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company does not have traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company does not have advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 

understanding that the Intermediary shall:

      (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identiŽied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

      (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company does not have received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded 

in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

      (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identiied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 

or

     (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

41. Corresponding figures of previous year are regrouped, rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to the current year classification.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company does not have revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use assets and Intangible assets during the year.

The Company does not have declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions.
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